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THE AMENDMENT

The amendment is as follows:
Strike all after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

Th

20

127

i’s Act may be cited as the “Foreign Relations Authorization Act, Fiscal Year

SEC. 2. TABLE OF CONTENTS.
The table of contents for this Act is as follows:

. 1. Short title.
. 2. Table of contents.
. 3. Appropriate congressional committees defined.
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TITLE I—AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS

Administration of foreign affairs.

Contributions to International Organizations.
Contributions for International Peacekeeping Activities.
International Commissions.

Migration and Refugee Assistance.

National Endowment for Democracy.

TITLE II—DEPARTMENT OF STATE AUTHORITIES AND ACTIVITIES
Subtitle A—Basic Authorities and Activities
Transfer of inspections back to the Secretary of State.

Actuarial valuations.
Special agents.
Diplomatic security program contracting.

Subtitle B—Consular Services and Related Matters

Extension of authority to assess passport surcharge.

Tibet.

Maintenance cost sharing program.

Border crossing card fee for minors.

Report on Office of Terrorism Finance and Economic Sanctions Policy of the Department of State.

Subtitle C—Other Matters

Statement of policy on existing United States understandings with Israel.
Recognition of Jerusalem as the capital of the State of Israel and relocation of the United States Em-
bassy to Jerusalem.

TITLE III—ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL AUTHORITIES

. Suspension of Foreign Service members without pay.

. Repeal of recertification requirement for Senior Foreign Service.
. Limited appointments in the Foreign Service.

. Limitation of compensatory time off for travel.

TITLE IV—UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL BROADCASTING

. Authorization of appropriations for international broadcasting.

. Personal services contracting program.

. Employment for international broadcasting.

. Technical amendment relating to civil immunity for Broadcasting Board of Governors members.

TITLE V—REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

. Reporting reform.
. Diplomatic relations with Israel.
. Report on progress to ameliorate violations of religious freedom.

TITLE VI—PROLIFERATION SECURITY INITIATIVE

Authority to interdict certain imports to and exports from Iran.
Report.
Definitions.

TITLE VII—PEACE CORPS VOLUNTEER SERVICE PROTECTION

Sexual assault complaints in the Peace Corps.
Peace Corps volunteer protection.
Conforming amendments.

Authorization of appropriations.
TITLE VIII-NUCLEAR NONPROLIFERATION

Withdrawal from the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons.
Prohibition on assistance to state sponsors of proliferation of weapons of mass destruction.
Additional protocol as a criterion for United States assistance.

TITLE IX—FOREIGN ASSISTANCE
Subtitle A—General Provisions

Goals of United States assistance.
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902. Guidelines for United States foreign assistance programs.
903. Report.

Subtitle B—Authorizations of Appropriations

911. Bilateral Economic Assistance.

912. United States Agency for International Development.

913. Nonproliferation, antiterrorism, and demining.

914. International narcotics control and law enforcement.

915. Partnerships between businesses and postsecondary educational institutions in Africa.

Subtitle C—Prohibitions on Assistance
PART I—GENERAL PROVISIONS

921. Countries that fail to meet MCC’s Corruption Performance Indicator.

922. Foreign organizations that promote or perform abortion.

923. Development Innovation Ventures program.

924. Countries that oppose the position of the United States in the United Nations.
925. Support for activities of the Global Climate Change Initiative.

926. Trilateral Assistance Program.

PART II—COUNTRY AND ORGANIZATION-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

931. Limitation on assistance to Argentina, Venezuela, Nicaragua, Ecuador, and Bolivia.
932. Muslim Brotherhood.

933. Palestinian Authority.

934. Sri Lanka.

935. Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia.

Subtitle D—Administrative Provisions

941. Transfer of liquidated assets of certain Enterprise Funds to the United States Treasury.

942. Limitation on funds for USAID’s Office of Budget and Resource Management.

943. Limitation on USAID training contracts under the Merida Initiative.

944. Internet website to make publicly available comprehensive, timely, comparable, and accessible infor-
mation on United States foreign assistance programs.

Subtitle E—Reports and Other Matters

951. Report on aid commitments and disbursements by other donors and international organizations.

952. Reports on financial disclosure of certain organizations and businesses that receive United States for-
eign assistance funding.

953. Statement of policy and report on sex-selection abortion.

954. Sense of Congress regarding reducing malaria prevalence and deaths.

955. Sense of Congress regarding second MCC Compact with Cape Verde.

956. Sense of Congress regarding microfinance and microenterprise programs.

957. Sense of Congress regarding microenterprise development assistance to sub-Saharan Africa.

TITLE X—SECURITY ASSISTANCE

. 1001. Short title.

Subtitle A—Military Assistance and Related Matters
PART I—FUNDING AUTHORIZATIONS

1011. Foreign Military Financing program.
1011A. International military education and training.

PART II—MILITARY ASSISTANCE AUTHORITIES AND RELATED PROVISIONS

1012. Authority to transfer excess defense articles.
1012A. Annual military assistance report.

1012B. Annual report on foreign military training.
1012C. Global Security Contingency Fund.

1012D. International military education and training.

PART III—ARMS EXPORT CONTROL ACT AMENDMENTS AND RELATED PROVISIONS

1013. Increased flexibility for use of defense trade control registration fees.

1013A. Increase in congressional notification thresholds.

1013B. Return of defense articles.

1013C. Annual estimate and justification for sales program.

1013]?A Updating and conforming penalties for violations of sections 38 and 39 of the Arms Export Control

1013E. Clarification of prohibitions relating to state sponsors of terrorism and their nationals.

1013F. Exemption for transactions with countries supporting acts of international terrorism.

1013G. Report on Foreign Military Financing program.

1013H. Congressional notification of regulations and amendments to regulations under section 38 of the
Arms Export Control Act.

1013I. Diplomatic efforts to strengthen national and international arms export controls.

1013J. Review and report of investigations of violations of section 3 of the Arms Export Control Act.

1013K. Increase in penalties for illicit trafficking in small arms and light weapons to countries in the
Western Hemisphere.

. 1013L. Department of State Rewards Program.

Subtitle B—Security Assistance and Related Matters

PART I—ISRAEL

. 1021. Report on United States commitments to the security of Israel.
. 1021A. Clarification of certification requirements relating to Israel’s qualitative military edge.
. 1021B. Support to Israel for missile defense.

PART II—EGYPT

. 1022. Limitation on security assistance to the Government of Egypt.
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1022A. Report on security assistance to the Government of Egypt.
1022B. Government of Egypt defined.

PART III—LEBANON

1023. Statement of policy.

1023A. Limitation on security assistance to the Government of Lebanon.
1023B. Report on security assistance to the Government of Lebanon.
1023C. Government of Lebanon defined.

PART IV—PALESTINIAN AUTHORITY

1024. Limitation on security assistance to the Palestinian Authority.
1024A. Report on security assistance to the Palestinian Authority.
1024B. Palestinian Authority defined.

PART V—PAKISTAN

1025. Authorization of appropriations.
1025A. Limitations on certain assistance.
1025B. Strategy reports.

PART VI—YEMEN

1026. Limitation on security assistance to the Government of Yemen.
1026A. Report on security assistance to the Government of Yemen.
1026B. Government of Yemen defined.

PART VII—MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1027. Definitions.
1027A. Report on police training.
1027B. Audits of United States assistance to Iraq.

Subtitle C—Peacekeeping Operations

. 1031. Peacekeeping operations.

Subtitle D—Reports

1041. Report on transparency in NATO arms sales.
1041A. Report on Task Force for Business and Stability Operations in Afghanistan.

TITLE XI—MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Subtitle A—General Provisions

1101. Elimination of East-West Center.

1102. Inspector General of the Global Fund.

1103. Antiboycott provisions.

1104. American materials required for public use of certain funds.

1105. Prohibition on disclosure of political contributions in submitting offers for Department of State con-
tracts.

1106. Protection of intellectual property rights.

1107. Inter-country adoption strategy.

1108. Clarification of sensitive technologies for purposes of procurement ban.

1109. Curtailing the frequency of international maritime piracy.

1110. United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees and Religious Freedom.

1111. Exchange program for women legislators and civil society leaders.

1112. National interest waiver under the Child Soldiers Prevention Act of 2008.

Subtitle B—Country-specific Provisions

. 1121. Azores Cooperative Initiative Program.

. 1122. United States embassies in Caribbean countries.

. 1123. Limitation on funds for U.S.-China Center of Excellence on Nuclear Security.
. 1124. Visas for certain citizens of the People’s Republic of China.

. 1125. Report on the influence of the People’s Republic of China in Southwest Asia.
. 1126. Enforcement of United States regulations on travel to Cuba.

. 1127. Measures supporting the reunification of Cyprus.

. 1128. Pending claims against the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

. 1129. Promotion of human rights in Vietnam.

Subtitle C—Statements of Policy

. 1131. Ecumenical Patriarchate.

. 1132. Special Envoy for the Great Lakes Region of Africa.
. 1133. Lord’s Resistance Army.

. 1134. Camp Ashraf.

. 1135. Human rights abuses by the Government of Syria.
. 1136. Relations with Russia.

. 1137. Cote d’Ivoire.

. 1138. Water and sanitation.

Subtitle D—Sense of Congress Provisions

PART I—GENERAL PROVISIONS

1141. Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs.

1142. Department of State code of conduct to prevent human trafficking.
1143. Public diplomacy.

1144. Human rights priorities.

1145. Discouraging murder and other forms of violence.

1146. International cooperation in space.

1147. Boundary, water, and fisheries commissions.
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PART II—COUNTRY-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

Sec. 1151. Keystone XL pipeline.

Sec. 1152. Activities of the People’s Republic of China in Africa.

Sec. 1153. Actions to secure freedom of Chen Guangcheng and other human rights defenders in the People’s
Republic of China.

Sec. 1154. Chinese drywall.

Sec. 1155. Rights of religious minorities in Egypt.

Sec. 1156. Plight of Coptic Christians in Egypt.

Sec. 1157. State sponsorship of terrorism by Eritrea.

Sec. 1158. Holocaust-era property restitution and compensation by certain European countries.

Sec. 1159. Democracy in Georgia.

Sec. 1160. Urging the immediate return of United States children abducted to Japan.

Sec. 1161. Relating to the Quartet and contacts with any Palestinian government.

Sec. 1162. Democracy and the rule of law in the Russian Federation.

Sec. 1163. Republic of the Sudan and Republic of South Sudan.

Sec. 1164. Sale of F-16 fighter aircraft to Taiwan.

Sec. 1165. Official contacts with Government of Turkey.

Sec. 1166. Restrictions on religious freedom in Vietnam.

Sec. 1167. European arms sales to China.

TITLE XII—LIMITATION ON ASSISTANCE TO THE PALESTINIAN AUTHORITY

Sec. 1201. Short title.
Sec. 1202. Sense of Congress.
Sec. 1203. Limitation on assistance to the Palestinian Authority.

SEC. 3. APPROPRIATE CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES DEFINED.

Except as otherwise provided in this Act, the term “appropriate congressional
committees” means the Committee on Foreign Affairs of the House of Representa-
tives and the Committee on Foreign Relations of the Senate.

TITLE I—AUTHORIZATION OF
APPROPRIATIONS

SEC. 101. ADMINISTRATION OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS.

The following amounts are authorized to be appropriated for the Department of
State under “Administration of Foreign Affairs” to carry out the authorities, func-
tions, duties, and responsibilities in the conduct of foreign affairs of the United
States, and for other purposes authorized by law:

(1) DIPLOMATIC AND CONSULAR PROGRAMS.—For “Diplomatic and Consular
Programs”, $8,790,000,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(A) WORLDWIDE SECURITY PROTECTION.—Of such amounts, $1,500,000,000
is authorized to be appropriated for worldwide security protection.

(B) BUREAU OF DEMOCRACY, HUMAN RIGHTS, AND LABOR.—Of such
amounts, not less than $21,416,000 for fiscal year 2012 is authorized to be
appropriated for the Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor.

(2) CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUND.—For “Capital Investment Fund”, $59,499,000
for fiscal year 2012.

(3) EMBASSY SECURITY, CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE.—For “Embassy Se-
curity, Construction and Maintenance”, $1,620,000,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(4) EDUCATIONAL AND CULTURAL EXCHANGE PROGRAMS.—For “Educational and
Cultural Exchange Programs”, $600,000,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(5) CONFLICT STABILIZATION OPERATIONS.—For “Conflict Stabilization Oper-
ations”, $35,000,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(6) REPRESENTATION ALLOWANCES.—For “Representation Allowances”,
$7,499,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(7) PROTECTION OF FOREIGN MISSIONS AND OFFICIALS.—For “Protection of For-
eign Missions and Officials”, $27,744,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(8) EMERGENCIES IN THE DIPLOMATIC AND CONSULAR SERVICE.—For “Emer-
gencies in the Diplomatic and Consular Service”, $9,499,000 for fiscal year
2012.

(9) REPATRIATION LOANS.—For “Repatriation Loans”, $1,450,000 for fiscal year
2012.

(10) PAYMENT TO THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE IN TAIWAN.—For “Payment to the
American Institute in Taiwan”, $21,150,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(11) OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.—For “Office of the Inspector Gen-
eral”, $100,000,000 for fiscal year 2012, including for the Special Inspector Gen-
eral for Iraq Reconstruction and the Special Inspector General for Afghanistan
Reconstruction.

SEC. 102. CONTRIBUTIONS TO INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS.

(a) IN GENERAL.—There are authorized to be appropriated for “Contributions to
International Organizations”, $1,186,361,250 for fiscal year 2012, for the Depart-
ment of State to carry out the authorities, functions, duties, and responsibilities in



6

the conduct of the foreign affairs of the United States with respect to international
organizations and to carry out other authorities in law consistent with such pur-
poses.

(b) LIMITATION.—None of the funds authorized to be appropriated by this section
are authorized to be appropriated for assessed contributions to the Organization of
American States.

SEC. 103. CONTRIBUTIONS FOR INTERNATIONAL PEACEKEEPING ACTIVITIES.

(a) STATEMENT OF PoLICY.—It remains the policy of the United States, pursuant
to section 404(b)(2)(A) of the Foreign Relations Authorization Act, Fiscal Years 1994
and 1995 (Public Law 103-236; 22 U.S.C. 287¢ note) that funds authorized to be
appropriated for contributions for international peacekeeping activities shall not be
available for the payment of the United States assessed contribution for a United
Nations peacekeeping operation in an amount that is greater than 25 percent of the
total of all assessed contributions for such operation.

(b) AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.—There are authorized to be appropriated
for “Contributions for International Peacekeeping Activities”, $1,735,382,277 for fis-
cal year 2012 for the Department of State to carry out the authorities, functions,
duties, and responsibilities of the United States with respect to international peace-
keeping activities and to carry out other authorities in law consistent with such pur-
poses.

SEC. 104. INTERNATIONAL COMMISSIONS.

The following amounts are authorized to be appropriated under “International
Commissions” for the Department of State to carry out the authorities, functions,
duties, and responsibilities in the conduct of the foreign affairs of the United States
and for other purposes authorized by law:

(1) INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARY AND WATER COMMISSION, UNITED STATES AND
MEXICO.—For “International Boundary and Water Commission, United States
and Mexico”—

(A) for “Salaries and Expenses”, $43,300,000 for fiscal year 2012; and
(B) for “Construction”, $26,500,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(2) INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARY COMMISSION, UNITED STATES AND CANADA.—For
“International Boundary Commission, United States and Canada”, $2,433,000
for fiscal year 2012.

(3) INTERNATIONAL JOINT COMMISSION.—For “International Joint Commis-
sion”, $7,237,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(4) INTERNATIONAL FISHERIES COMMISSIONS.—For “International Fisheries
Commissions”, $31,291,000 for fiscal year 2012.

SEC. 105. MIGRATION AND REFUGEE ASSISTANCE.

(a) AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.—There are authorized to be appropriated
for “Migration and Refugee Assistance” for authorized activities $1,690,000,000 for
fiscal year 2012.

(b) REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT IN ISRAEL.—Of the amounts authorized to be appro-
priated by subsection (a), there are authorized to be appropriated $25,000,000 for
fiscal year 2012 for resettlement of refugees in Israel.

SEC. 106. NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR DEMOCRACY.

There are authorized to be appropriated for the “National Endowment for Democ-
racy” for authorized activities $118,000,000 for fiscal year 2012.

TITLE II—DEPARTMENT OF STATE
AUTHORITIES AND ACTIVITIES

Subtitle A—Basic Authorities and Activities

SEC. 201. TRANSFER OF INSPECTIONS BACK TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

(a) LIMITATION OF INSPECTOR GENERAL DUTIES.—Paragraph (1) section 209(a) of
the Foreign Service Act of 1980 (22 U.S.C. 3929(a)), is amended by striking the
fourth sentence and inserting the following new sentence: “The Inspector General
shall perform such functions as the Secretary of State may prescribe, except that
the Secretary of State shall not assign to the Inspector general any general oper-
ating responsibilities.”.

(b) INSPECTIONS BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE.—

(1) INSPECTIONS.—The Secretary of State shall periodically inspect the admin-
istration of activities and operations of each Foreign Service post and each bu-
reau and other operating unit of the Department of State.
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(2) REPORTS PROVIDED TO THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.—The Secretary of State
shall provide to the Inspector General of the Department of State a copy of the
report of each inspection carried out in accordance with paragraph (1).

(¢) RULE OF CONSTRUCTION.—Nothing in this section shall be construed as lim-
iting the authority of the Inspector General of the Department of State to conduct
audits, investigations, or inspections under the Inspector General Act of 1978 (5
U.S.C. App.).

SEC. 202. INTERNATIONAL LITIGATION FUND.

Paragraph (3) of section 38(d) of the State Department Basic Authorities Act of
1956 (22 U.S.C. 2710(d)) is amended by striking “by the Department of State from
another agency of the United States Government or pursuant to” and inserting “by
the Department of State as a result of a decision of an international tribunal, from
another agency of the United States Government, or pursuant to”.

SEC. 203. ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS.

The Foreign Service Act of 1980 is amended—

(1) in section 818 (22 U.S.C. 4058)—

(A) in the first sentence, by striking “Secretary of the Treasury” and in-
serting “Secretary of State”; and

(B) by amending the second sentence to read as follows: “The Secretary
of State is authorized to expend from money to the credit of the Fund such
sums as may be necessary to administer the provisions of this subchapter,
including actuarial advice, but only to the extent and in such amounts as
are provided in advance in appropriations Acts.”;

(2) in section 819 (22 U.S.C. 4059), in the first sentence, by striking “Sec-
retary of the Treasury” the second place it appears and inserting “Secretary of
State”;

(3) in section 825(b) (22 U.S.C. 4065(b)), by striking “Secretary of the Treas-
ury” and inserting “Secretary of State”; and

(4) section 859(c) (22 U.S.C. 4071h(c))—

(A) by striking “Secretary of the Treasury” and inserting instead “Sec-
retary of State”; and

(B) by striking “and shall advise the Secretary of State of” and inserting
“that will provide”.

SEC. 204. SPECIAL AGENTS.

(a) IN GENERAL.—Paragraph (1) of section 37(a) of the State Department Basic
Authorities Act of 1956 (22 U.S.C. 2709(a)) is amended to read as follows:
“(1) conduct investigations concerning—

“(A) illegal passport or visa issuance or use;

“(B) identity theft or document fraud affecting or relating to the pro-
grams, functions, and authorities of the Department of State; and

“(C) Federal offenses committed within the special maritime and terri-
torial jurisdiction of the United States as defined in paragraph (9) of section
7 of title 18, United States Code, except as that jurisdiction relates to the
premises of United States military missions and related residences;”.

(b) RULE OF CONSTRUCTION.—Nothing in paragraph (1) of section 37(a) the State
Department Basic Authorities Act of 1956 (as amended by subsection (a) of this sec-
tion) shall be construed to limit the investigative authority of any other Federal de-
partment or agency.

SEC. 205. DIPLOMATIC SECURITY PROGRAM CONTRACTING.

Section 136 of the Foreign Relations Authorization Act, Fiscal Years 1990 and
1991 (22 U.S.C. 4864) is amended—
(1) in subsection (c)—
(A) in the matter preceding paragraph (1), by striking “With respect” and
inserting “Except as provided in subsection (d), with respect”; and
(B) in paragraph (3), by striking “subsection (d)” and inserting “sub-
section (e)”;
(2) by redesignating subsections (d), (e), (f), and (g) as subsections (e), (f), (g),
and (h), respectively;
(3) by inserting after subsection (c) the following new subsection:

“(d) AWARD OF LOCAL GUARD AND PROTECTIVE SERVICE CONTRACTS IN HIGH RISK
AREAS.—With respect to local guard contracts for Foreign Service buildings located
in high risk areas which exceed $250,000, the Secretary of State shall—

“(1) comply with paragraphs (1), (2), (4), (5), and (6) of subsection (c¢) in the
award of such contracts;

“(2) in evaluating proposals for such contracts, award contracts to the firm
representing the best value to the Government in accordance with the best
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value tradeoff process described in subpart 15.1 of the Federal Acquisition Reg-
ulation (48 C.F.R. 15.101-1); and
“(3) ensure that in all contracts awarded under this subsection, contractor
personnel providing local guard or protective services are classified as—
“(A) employees of the offeror;
“(B) if the offeror is a joint venture, as the employees of one of the per-
sons or parties constituting the joint venture; or
“(C) as employees of a subcontractor to the offeror, and not as inde-
pendent contractors to the offeror or any other entity performing under
such contracts.”; and
(4) in subsection (e), as redesignated by paragraph (2) of this section—
(A) in paragraph (3), by striking “and” at the end;
(B) in paragraph (4), by striking the period at the end and inserting ;
and”; and
(C) by adding after paragraph (4) the following new paragraph:
“(5) the term ‘high risk areas’ means—
“(A) an area designated as a contingency operation in accordance with
section 101(a)(13) of title 10, United States Code; or
“(B) an area determined by the Assistant Secretary of Diplomatic Secu-
rity to present an increased threat of serious damage or harm to United
States diplomatic facilities or personnel.”.

Subtitle B—Consular Services and Related
Matters

SEC. 211. EXTENSION OF AUTHORITY TO ASSESS PASSPORT SURCHARGE.

Paragraph (2) of section 1(b) of the Act of June 4, 1920 (41 Stat. 750; chapter 223;
22 U.S.C. 214(b)), is amended by striking “2010” and inserting “2015”.

SEC. 212. TIBET.

(a) TIBET NEGOTIATIONS.—Section 613(a) of the Tibetan Policy Act of 2002 (Public
Law 107-228; 22 U.S.C. 6901 note) is amended—

(1) in paragraph (1), by inserting before the period at the end the following:
, and should coordinate with other governments in multilateral efforts toward

this goal”;

(2) by redesignating paragraph (2) as paragraph (3); and

(3) by inserting after paragraph (1) the following new paragraph:

“(2) PoLicY COORDINATION.—The President shall direct the National Security
Council to ensure that, in accordance with this Act, United States policy on
Tibet is coordinated and communicated with all executive branch agencies in
contact with the Government of the People’s Republic of China.”.

(b) DIPLOMATIC REPRESENTATION RELATING TO TIBET.—

(1) UNITED STATES EMBASSY IN BELJING.—

(A) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary of State is authorized to establish a
Tibet Section within the United States Embassy in Beijing, China, for the
purposes of following political, economic, and social developments inside
Tibet, including Tibetan areas of Qinghai, Sichuan, Gansu, and Yunnan
provinces, until such time as a United States consulate in Tibet is estab-
lished. Such Tibet Section shall have the primary responsibility for report-
ing on human rights issues in Tibet and shall work in close cooperation
with the Office of the Special Coordinator for Tibetan Issues of the Depart-
ment of State. The chief of such Tibet Section should be of senior rank.

(2) IN TIBET.—Section 618 of the Tibetan Policy Act of 2002 is amended to
read as follows:

“SEC. 618. ESTABLISHMENT OF A UNITED STATES CONSULATE IN LHASA, TIBET.

“The Secretary shall seek to establish a United States consulate in Lhasa, Tibet,
to provide services to United States citizens traveling in Tibet and to monitor polit-
ical, economic, and cultural developments in Tibet, including Tibetan areas of
Qinghai, Sichuan, Gansu, and Yunnan provinces and, until such consulate is estab-
lished, shall not permit the establishment in the United States of any additional
consulate of the People’s Republic of China.”.

(¢) RELIGIOUS PERSECUTION IN TIBET.—Section 620(b) of the Tibetan Policy Act of
2002 is amended by adding before the period at the end the following: “, including
in the reincarnation system of Tibetan Buddhism”.

(d) BILATERAL ASSISTANCE.—Section 616 of the Tibetan Policy Act of 2002 is
amended—

«
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(1) in subsection (a), in the second sentence, by striking “subsection (d)” and
inserting “subsection (e)”;

(2) in subsection (b), by striking “subsection (d)” and inserting “subsection
(e)”s

(3) in subsection (c), by striking “subsection (d)” and inserting “subsection (e)”;

(4) by redesignating subsection (d) as subsection (e); and

(5) by inserting after subsection (c) the following new subsection:

“(d) UNITED STATES ASSISTANCE.—The President shall provide grants to non-
governmental organizations to support sustainable economic development, cultural
and historical preservation, health care, education, and environmental sustainability
projects for Tibetan communities in the Tibet Autonomous Region and in other Ti-
betan communities in China, in accordance with the principles specified in sub-
section (e) and subject to review and approval of the United States Special Coordi-
nator for Tibetan Issues under section 621(d).”.

SEC. 213. MAINTENANCE COST SHARING PROGRAM.

Section 604(e)(1) of the Secure Embassy Construction and Counterterrorism Act
of 1999 (22 U.S.C. 4865 note) is amended, in the first sentence, by striking “pro-
viding new,” and inserting “providing, maintaining, repairing, and renovating”.

SEC. 214. BORDER CROSSING CARD FEE FOR MINORS.

Section 410(a)(1)(A) of the Department of State and Related Agencies Appropria-
tions Act, 1999 (contained in division A of Public Law 105-277) is amended by strik-
ing “a fee of $13” and inserting “a fee equal to one-half the fee that would otherwise
apply for processing a machine readable combined border crossing identification
card and nonimmigrant visa”.

SEC. 215. REPORT ON OFFICE OF TERRORISM FINANCE AND ECONOMIC SANCTIONS POLICY
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE.

(a) REPORT.—Not later than three months after the date of the enactment of this
Act, the Secretary of State shall submit to the appropriate congressional committees
a report on the resources and effectiveness of the Office of Terrorism Finance and
Economic Sanctions Policy of the Department of State.

(b) CONTENTS.—The report required under subsection (a) shall include the fol-
lowing:

(1) An assessment of how additional resources would enhance the efforts of
the Office of Terrorism Finance and Economic Sanctions Policy to initiate, con-
duct, and complete investigations into violations of United States sanctions pol-
icy in a timely and effective manner and carry out its goals and mission.

(2) An assessment of the feasibility and constraints toward increasing per-
sonnel numbers or enabling short-term contracting with outside consultants in
the Office of Terrorism Finance and Economic Sanctions Policy.

(3) An analysis of the potential impact of increased personnel, contracting au-
thority, and resources for the Office of Terrorism Finance and Economic Sanc-
tions Policy on the timeframe for a typical investigation’s initiation, perform-
ance, conclusion, and resolution.

Subtitle C—Other Matters

SEC. 221. STATEMENT OF POLICY ON EXISTING UNITED STATES UNDERSTANDINGS WITH
ISRAEL.
It is shall be the policy of the United States to uphold and act in accordance with
all of the reassurances provided by the President in the April 14, 2004, letter to the
Prime Minister of Israel.

SEC. 222. RECOGNITION OF JERUSALEM AS THE CAPITAL OF THE STATE OF ISRAEL AND RE-
LOCATION OF THE UNITED STATES EMBASSY TO JERUSALEM.
(a) SENSE OF CONGRESS.—It is the sense of Congress that—

(1) Jerusalem must remain an undivided city in which the rights of every eth-
nic and religious group are protected as they have been by Israel since 1967,

(2) the President and the Secretary of State should publicly affirm as a mat-
ter of United States policy that Jerusalem must remain the undivided capital
of the State of Israel;

(3) the President should immediately implement the provisions of Jerusalem
Embassy Act of 1995 (Public Law 104-45) and begin the process of relocating
the United States Embassy in Israel to Jerusalem; and

(4) United States officials should refrain from any actions that contradict
United States law on this subject.
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(b) AMENDING OF WAIVER AUTHORITY.—Subsection (a) of section 7 of the Jeru-
salem Embassy Act of 1995 (Public Law 104-45) is amended by adding at the end
the following new paragraph:

“(4) The Presidential waiver authority granted in this section shall expire on Jan-
uary 1, 2014.”.

(¢c) IDENTIFICATION OF JERUSALEM ON GOVERNMENT DOCUMENTS.—Notwith-
standing any other provision of law, any official document of the United States Gov-
ernment that lists countries and their capital cities shall identify Jerusalem as the
capital of Israel.

(d) TIMETABLE.—It is the policy of the United States that the United States Em-
bassy in Israel should be established in Jerusalem as soon as possible, and not later
than January 1, 2014.

(e) FiscaL YEAR 2012 FUNDING.—Of the funds authorized to be appropriated for
“Acquisition and Maintenance of Buildings Abroad” for the Department of State for
fiscal year 2012, not less than $500,000 shall be made available until expended only
for construction and other costs associated with the establishment of the United
States Embassy in Israel in the capital of Jerusalem.

(f) DEFINITION.—In this section, the term “United States Embassy” means the of-
fices of the United States diplomatic mission and the residence of the United States
chief of mission.

TITLE III—ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
AUTHORITIES

SEC. 301. SUSPENSION OF FOREIGN SERVICE MEMBERS WITHOUT PAY.

(a) SUSPENSION.—Section 610 of the Foreign Service Act of 1980 (22 U.S.C. 4010)
is amended by adding at the end the following new subsection:

“(c)(1) In order to promote the efficiency of the Service, the Secretary may suspend
a member of the Foreign Service without pay when the member’s security clearance
is suspended or when there is reasonable cause to believe that the member has com-
mitted a crime for which a sentence of imprisonment may be imposed.

“(2) Any member of the Foreign Service for whom a suspension is proposed in ac-
cordance with paragraph (1) shall be entitled to—

“(A) written notice stating the specific reasons for the proposed suspension;

“(B) a reasonable time to respond orally and in writing to the proposed sus-
pension;

“(C) representation by an attorney or other representative; and

“(D) a final written decision, including the specific reasons for such decision,
as soon as practicable.

“(3) Any member suspended under this section may file a grievance in accordance
with the procedures applicable to grievances under chapter 11.
“(4) In the case of a grievance filed under paragraph (3)—

“(A) the review by the Foreign Service Grievance Board shall be limited to
a determination of whether the provisions of paragraphs (1) and (2) have been
fulfilled; and

“(B) the Foreign Service Grievance Board may not exercise the authority pro-
vided under section 1106(8).

“(5) In this subsection:

“(A) The term ‘reasonable time’ means—

“(i) with respect to a member of the Foreign Service assigned to duty in
the United States, 15 days after receiving notice of the proposed suspen-
sion; and

“(i1) with respect to a member of the Foreign Service assigned to duty out-
side the United States, 30 days after receiving notice of the proposed sus-
pension.

“(B) The term ‘suspend’ or ‘suspension’ means the placing of a member of the
Foreign Service in a temporary status without duties and pay.”.

(b) CONFORMING AND CLERICAL AMENDMENTS.—

(1) AMENDMENT OF SECTION HEADING.—Section 610 of the Foreign Service Act
of 1980, as amended by subsection (a) of this section, is further amended, in
the section heading, by inserting “; SUSPENSION” before the period at the end.

(2) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.—The item relating to section 610 in the table of
(fzorftents in section 2 of the Foreign Service Act of 1980 is amended to read as
ollows:

“Sec. 610. Separation for cause; suspension.”.
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SEC. 302. REPEAL OF RECERTIFICATION REQUIREMENT FOR SENIOR FOREIGN SERVICE.
Section 305(d) of the Foreign Service Act of 1980 (22 U.S.C. 3945(d)) is repealed.
SEC. 303. LIMITED APPOINTMENTS IN THE FOREIGN SERVICE.

Section 309 of the Foreign Service Act of 1980 (22 U.S.C. 3949) is amended—
(1) in subsection (a), by striking “subsection (b)” and inserting “subsections (b)
or (¢)”;
(2) in subsection (b)—
(A) in paragraph (3)—
(i) by inserting “(A),” after “if”; and
(ii) by inserting before the semicolon at the end the following: “, or
(B), the career candidate is serving in the uniformed services, as de-
fined by the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment
Rights Act of 1994 (38 U.S.C. 4301 et seq.), and the limited appoint-
ment expires in the course of such service”;
(B) in paragraph (4), by striking “and” at the end;
(C) in paragraph (5), by striking the period at the end and inserting
and”; and
(D) by adding after paragraph (5) the following new paragraph:

“(6) in exceptional circumstances where the Secretary determines the needs of the
Service require the extension of a limited appointment (A), for a period of time not
to exceed 12 months (if such period of time does not permit additional review by
boards under section 306), or (B), for the minimum time needed to settle a griev-
ance, claim, or complaint not otherwise provided for in this section.”; and

(3) by adding at the end the following new subsection:

“(c) Non-career Foreign Service employees who have served five consecutive years
under a limited appointment may be reappointed to a subsequent limited appoint-
ment if there is a one year break in service between each such appointment. The
Secretary may in cases of special need waive the requirement for a one year break
in service.”.

SEC. 304. LIMITATION OF COMPENSATORY TIME OFF FOR TRAVEL.

Section 5550b of title 5, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end the
following new subsection:

“(c) The maximum amount of compensatory time off earned under this section
may not exceed 104 hours during any leave year (as defined by regulations estab-
lished by the Office of Personnel Management).”.

TITLE IV—-UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL
BROADCASTING

SEC. 401. AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR INTERNATIONAL BROADCASTING.

(a) IN GENERAL.—The following amounts are authorized to be appropriated to
carry out United States international broadcasting activities under the United
States Information and Educational Exchange Act of 1948, the Radio Broadcasting
to Cuba Act, the Television Broadcasting to Cuba Act, the United States Inter-
national Broadcasting Act of 1994, and the Foreign Affairs Reform and Restruc-
turing Act of 1998, and to carry out other authorities in law consistent with such
purposes:

(1) For “International Broadcasting Operations”, $741,500,000 for fiscal year
2012.

(2) For “Broadcasting Capital Improvements”, $6,875,000 for fiscal year 2012.

(b) LIMITATION.—

(1) RELATING TO VOICE OF AMERICA BROADCASTING TO CHINA.—Of the funds
authorized to be appropriated to the Broadcasting Board of Governors,
$13,760,000 is authorized to be appropriated only for Voice of America Man-
darin and Cantonese language radio and satellite television broadcasting. Such
funds may not be used for any other purpose.

(2) RELATING TO SINDHI.—Of the funds authorized to be appropriated to the
Broadcasting Board of Governors, $1,500,000 is authorized to be appropriated
only for Voice of America Sindhi language communication. Such funds may not
be used for any other purpose.

SEC. 402. PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTING PROGRAM.

Section 504(c) of the Foreign Relations Authorization Act, Fiscal Year 2003, (Pub-
lic Law 107-228; 22 U.S.C. 6206 note), is amended by striking “2009” and inserting
“2014”.
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SEC. 403. EMPLOYMENT FOR INTERNATIONAL BROADCASTING.

Section 804(1) of the United States Information and Educational Exchange Act of
1948 (22 U.S.C. 1474(1)) is amended—
(1) by inserting after “suitably qualified United States citizens” the following:
“(for purposes of this paragraph, the term ‘suitably qualified United States citi-
zens’ means those United States citizen applicants who are equally or better
qualified than alien applicants)”; and
(2) by striking “Attorney General” and inserting “Secretary of Homeland Se-
curity”.
SEC. 404. TECHNICAL AMENDMENT RELATING TO CIVIL IMMUNITY FOR BROADCASTING
BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEMBERS.
Section 304(g) of the United States International Broadcasting Act of 1994 (22
U.S.C. 6203(g)) is amended by striking “Incorporated and Radio Free Asia” and in-
serting “Incorporated, Radio Free Asia, and Middle East Broadcasting Networks”.

TITLE V—REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

SEC. 501. REPORTING REFORM.

The following provisions of law are repealed:
(1) Section 560(g) of Public Law 103-87.
(2) Section 605(c) of App. G, Public Law 106-113.
(3) Section 104 of Public Law 102-511.
(4) Section 704(c) of Public Law 101-179.
(5) Section 1012(c) of Public Law 103-337.
(6) Subsections (c)(4) and (c)(5) of section 601 of Public Law 96-465.
(7) Section 585 in the matter under section 101(c) of division A of Public Law
104-208.
(8) Sections 694(a), 694(b), 704, and 1321 of Public Law 107-228.
(9) Sections 133(d) of Public Law 87-195.
(10) Sections 11(b) of Public Law 107-245.
(11) Section 514(a) of Public Law 103-236.
(12) Section 807 of Public Law 98-164.

SEC. 502. DIPLOMATIC RELATIONS WITH ISRAEL.

(a) STATEMENT OF PoLIiCcY.—It is the policy of the United States to assist Israel
in its efforts to establish and enhance its diplomatic relations with other responsible
countries and to promote Israel’s full participation in appropriate multilateral fo-
rums.

(b) REPORT.—Not later than 90 days after the date of the enactment of this Act
and annually for each of the following three years, the Secretary of State shall sub-
mit to the appropriate congressional committees a report that includes the following
information:

(1) Actions taken by representatives of the United States to encourage other
responsible countries to establish full diplomatic relations with Israel.

(2) Specific responses solicited and received by the Secretary from countries
that do not maintain full diplomatic relations with Israel with respect to their
attitudes toward and plans for entering into diplomatic relations with Israel.

(3) Actions taken by representatives of the United States to encourage Israel’s
entry into appropriate regional and other groupings, encourage Israel’s election
to governing bodies of appropriate multilateral forums, and support Israel’s
membership in appropriate multilateral forums.

(4) Other measures being undertaken, and measures that will be undertaken,
by the United States to counter multilateral efforts to isolate Israel, as well as
to ensure and promote Israel’s full participation in the world diplomatic commu-
nity.

(c) ForM oF SuBMISsION.—Each report required under subsection (b) shall be sub-
mitted in unclassified form but may include a classified annex, if the Secretary of
State determines such is appropriate.

SEC. 503. REPORT ON PROGRESS TO AMELIORATE VIOLATIONS OF RELIGIOUS FREEDOM.

The Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 is amended—

(1) in section 116 (22 U.S.C. 2151n), by adding at the end the following new
subsection:

“(g) PROGRESS TO AMELIORATE VIOLATIONS OF RELIGIOUS FREEDOM.—Every five
years beginning in 2012, the report required by subsection (d) shall include, wher-
ever applicable, a description of progress to ameliorate violations of religious free-
dom identified by the United States Commission on International Religious Freedom
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by governments of countries designated by the Commission as Countries of Par-
ticular Concern.”; and
(2) in section 502B (22 U.S.C. 2304), by adding at the end the following new
subsection:

“(j) PROGRESS TO AMELIORATE VIOLATIONS OF RELIGIOUS FREEDOM.—Every five
years beginning in 2012, the report required by subsection (b) shall include, wher-
ever applicable, a description of progress to ameliorate violations of religious free-
dom identified by the United States Commission on International Religious Freedom
by governments of countries designated by the Commission as Countries of Par-
ticular Concern.”.

TITLE VI—PROLIFERATION SECURITY
INITIATIVE

SEC. 601. AUTHORITY TO INTERDICT CERTAIN IMPORTS TO AND EXPORTS FROM IRAN.

The President is authorized to—

(1) utilize the Proliferation Security Initiative and other measures necessary
to enforce United States laws and Executive Orders, and multilateral and bilat-
eral agreements, including the 2005 Protocol to the Convention for the Suppres-
sion of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime Navigation, for the pur-
pose of interdicting the import into or export from Iran by the Government of
Iran or any other country, entity, or person of any items, materials, equipment,
goods, or technology useful for any nuclear, biological, chemical, missile, or con-
ventional arms program; and

(2) utilize ship boarding and other interdiction agreements with countries de-
termined to be necessary to accomplish the purpose specified in paragraph (1).

SEC. 602. REPORT.

(a) IN GENERAL.—Section 2 of the Iran, North Korea, and Syria Nonproliferation
Act (Public Law 106-178; 50 U.S.C. 1701 note) is amended—

(é) in Zubsection (b), by striking “6-month period” and inserting “120-day pe-
riod”; an
(2) by adding at the end the following new subsection:

“(f) ADDITIONAL CONTENTS OF REPORTS.—Each report under subsection (a) shall
contain a description, with respect the transfer or acquisition of the goods, services,
or technology described in such subsection, of the actions taken by foreign govern-
ments to assist in interdicting such transfer or acquisition.”.

(b) EFFECTIVE DATE.—The amendments made by subsection (a) take effect on the
date of the enactment of this Act and apply with respect to the first report required
to be submitted under section 2 of the Iran, North Korea, and Syria Nonprolifera-
tion Act after such date.

SEC. 603. DEFINITIONS.

In this title:
(1) APPROPRIATE CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES.—The term “appropriate con-
gressional committees” means—
(A) the Committee of Foreign Affairs and the Committee on Appropria-
tions of the House of Representatives; and
(B) the Committee on Foreign Relations and the Committee on Appro-
priations of the Senate.
(2) GOVERNMENT OF IRAN.—The term “Government of Iran” means—
(A) any official of the Government of Iran;
(B) any agency or instrumentality of the Government of Iran;
(C) any entity that is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the
Government of Iran;
(D) any member or instrumentality of the Iranian Revolutionary Guard
Corps (IRGC); or
(E) any entity that is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly by a
member or instrumentality of the IRGC.

TITLE VII—PEACE CORPS VOLUNTEER
SERVICE PROTECTION

SEC. 701. SEXUAL ASSAULT COMPLAINTS IN THE PEACE CORPS.

(a) SENSE OF CONGRESS.—It is the sense of Congress that the Peace Corps has
begun responding to concerns related to its handling of sexual assault complaints
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from its volunteers that have been the subject of media reports and oversight hear-
ings, including by the hiring of a Victim’s Advocate.

(b) STATEMENT OF CONGRESS.—Congress looks forward to working cooperatively
with the Peace Corps on additional, necessary steps to protect volunteers, including
the enactment and implementation of this title.

SEC. 702. PEACE CORPS VOLUNTEER PROTECTION.

The Peace Corps Act is amended by inserting after section 8 (22 U.S.C. 2507) the
following new sections:

“SAFETY AND SECURITY AGREEMENT REGARDING PEACE CORPS VOLUNTEERS SERVING IN
FOREIGN COUNTRIES

“SEC. 8A. (a) IN GENERAL.—Not later than six months after the date of the enact-
ment of this section, the Director of the Peace Corps shall consult with the Assistant
Secretary of State for Diplomatic Security and enter into a memorandum of under-
standing that specifies the duties and obligations of the Peace Corps and the Bureau
of Diplomatic Security of the Department of State with respect to the protection of
Peace Corps volunteers and staff members serving in foreign countries, including
with respect to investigations of safety and security incidents and crimes committed
against such volunteers and staff members.

“(b) INSPECTOR GENERAL REVIEW.—

“(1) REVIEW.—The Inspector General of the Peace Corps shall review the
memorandum of understanding described in subsection (a) and be afforded the
opportunity to recommend changes that advance the safety and security of
Peace Corps volunteers before its entry into force.

“(2) REPORT.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall consider all recommenda-
tions of the Inspector General of the Peace Corps regarding the memorandum
of understanding described in subsection (a). If the Director enters into such
memorandum without addressing a recommendation of the Inspector General,
tﬁe Director shall submit to the Inspector General an explanation relating
thereto.

“(3) FAILURE TO MEET DEADLINE.—

“(A) REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT REPORT.—If, by the date that is 6 months
after the date of the enactment of this section, the Director of the Peace
Corps is unable to obtain agreement with the Assistant Secretary of State
for Diplomatic Security and certification by the Inspector General of the
Peace Corps, the Director shall submit to the committees of Congress speci-
fied in subparagraph (C) a report explaining the reasons for such failure.

“(B) LIMITATION ON FUNDS.—If, by the date that is 9 months after the
date of the enactment of this section, the memorandum of understanding
described in subsection (a) has not entered into force, no funds available to
the Peace Corps may be obligated or expended to extend to Peace Corps vol-
unteers invitations for service or to deploy Peace Corps trainees overseas
unless the Director of the Peace Corps certifies to the committees of Con-
gress specified in subparagraph (C) that—

“(i) significant progress is being made toward finalizing such memo-
randum; and

“@1) the Peace Corps is using best efforts to provide volunteers with
the training, support, and information they need to stay safe and se-
cure.

“(C) COMMITTEES OF CONGRESS SPECIFIED.—The committees of Congress
specified in this subparagraph are the Committee on Foreign Affairs of the
IS-Iouse of Representatives and the Committee on Foreign Relations of the

enate.

“(c) INCLUSION OF TRAINEES.—In this section and sections 8B through 8I, the term
‘volunteers’ includes trainees.

“SEXUAL ASSAULT RISK-REDUCTION AND RESPONSE TRAINING

“SEC. 8B. (a) IN GENERAL.—As part of the training provided to all volunteers
under section 8(a), the Director of the Peace Corps shall develop and implement
comprehensive sexual assault risk-reduction and response training that conforms to
best practices in the sexual assault field as appropriate for first responders and
other staff.

“(b) DEVELOPMENT AND CONSULTATION WITH EXPERTS.—In developing the sexual
assault risk-reduction and response training under subsection (a), the Director of
the Peace Corps shall consult with and incorporate, as appropriate, the rec-
ommendations and views of experts in the sexual assault field.

“(c) SUBSEQUENT TRAINING.—Once a trainee has arrived in such trainee’s country
of service, the Director of the Peace Corps shall provide such trainee with training
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tailored to such country, including cultural training relating to gender relations,
risk-reduction strategies, a safety plan in the event of an assault, treatment avail-
able in such country (such as forensic rape exams, PEP for HIV exposure, STD
screening, and pregnancy testing), MedEvac procedures, and information regarding
the legal process for pressing charges against an attacker.

“(d) HisToRrICAL ANALYSIS.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall provide each
applicant for enrollment with a historical analysis of crimes and risks against volun-
teers in the country in which the applicant has been invited to serve.

“(e) CoNTACT INFORMATION.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall provide each
trainee, before each such trainee enrolls as a volunteer, with—

“(1) the contact information of the Inspector General of the Peace Corps for
purposes of reporting violations of the sexual assault protocol under section 8C
or any other criminal or administrative wrongdoing by volunteers, personnel
(including experts and consultants), or other individuals (including contractors)
who do business with the Peace Corps; and

“(2) clear, written guidelines regarding whom to contact, including the direct
telephone number for a victim advocate and what steps to take in the event of
a sexual assault.

“(f) DEFINITIONS.—In this section and sections 8C through 8I:

“(1) ASSAULT.—

“(A) IN GENERAL.—The term ‘assault’ means an act that—
“(i) creates an apprehension in an individual of an imminent, harm-
ful, or offensive contact; or
“@i1) is a harmful or offensive touching.
“(B) INCLUSION.—The term ‘assault’ includes stalking and sexual assault.

“(2) SEXUAL ASSAULT.—The term ‘sexual assault’ means any conduct described
in chapter 109A of title 18, United States Code, relating to aggravated sexual
abuse, sexual abuse, and sexual contact, whether or not the conduct occurs in
the special maritime and territorial jurisdiction of the United States, and in-
cludes both assaults committed by offenders who are strangers to the victim
and assaults committed by offenders who are known or related by blood or mar-
riage to the victim.

“(3) STALKING.—The term ‘stalking’ means engaging in a course of conduct di-
rected at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to—

“(A) fear for his or her safety or the safety of others; or
“(B) suffer substantial emotional distress.

“SEXUAL ASSAULT PROTOCOL AND GUIDELINES

“SEC. 8C. (a) IN GENERAL.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall develop and im-
plement comprehensive sexual assault protocol and guidelines that—

“(1) conform to best practices in the sexual assault field; and

“(2) are applicable to all posts at which volunteers serve.

“(b) DEVELOPMENT AND CONSULTATION WITH EXPERTS.—In developing the sexual
assault policy under subsection (a), the Director of the Peace Corps shall consult
with and incorporate, as appropriate, the recommendations and views of experts in
the sexual assault field.

“(c) ELEMENTS.—The sexual assault protocol and guidelines developed under sub-
section (a) shall include, at a minimum, the following services with respect to a vol-
unteer who has been a victim of sexual assault:

“(1) Protection of such volunteer’s confidentiality.

“(2) Provision of a victim’s advocate to such volunteer.

“(3) Provision of a sexual assault forensic evidence kit to such volunteer upon
request.

“(4) Provision of emergency health care to such volunteer, including, to the
greatest extent practicable, a choice of medical providers and a mechanism for
such volunteer to evaluate such provider.

“(5) Provision of counseling and psychiatric medication.

“(6) Completion of a safety and treatment plan with such volunteer.

“(7) Evacuation of such volunteer, accompanied by a Peace Corps staffer at
the request of such volunteer.

“(8) An explanation to such volunteer of available law enforcement, prosecu-
torial options, and legal representation.

“(d) DISTRIBUTION AND TRAINING.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall dis-
tribute to and train all in-country staff regarding the sexual assault protocol and
guidelines developed under subsection (a).

“(e) REMOVAL AND ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION.—

“(1) IN GENERAL.—If a volunteer feels at risk of imminent bodily harm and
requests removal from the site in which such volunteer is serving, the Director
of the Peace Corps shall, as expeditiously as practical after receiving such re-
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quest, remove such volunteer from such site. If the Director of the Peace Corps
receives such a request, the Director of the Peace Corps shall assess and evalu-
ate the safety of such site and may not assign another volunteer to such site
until such time as such assessment and evaluation is complete and such site
has been determined to be safe.

“(2) DETERMINATION OF SITE AS UNSAFE.—Volunteers may remain at a site
during an assessment and evaluation under paragraph (1). If the Director the
Peace Corps determines that a site is unsafe, the Director of the Peace Corps
shall, as expeditiously as practical, remove all volunteers from such site.

“(f) SEXUAL ASSAULT RESPONSE TEAMS.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall es-
tablish sexual assault response teams, including Safety and Security Officers, med-
ical staff, and a victim advocate, that can respond to reports of sexual assault
against a volunteer.

“(g) CASE REVIEW.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall conduct case reviews
of a statistically significant number of cases on a quarterly basis to determine if
proper procedures were followed in accordance with the sexual assault protocols and
guidelines developed under subsection (a) and including the elements specified in
subsection (c).

“(h) TRACKING AND RECORDING.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall establish
a global tracking and recording system to track and record incidents of assault
against volunteers.

“(i) PROHIBITION ON COMBINING INCIDENTS.—The Director of the Peace Corps may
not combine into one incident for purposes of tracking and recording under sub-
section (h) reports by different volunteers of assault against such volunteers even
if such assaults were committed by one individual against such volunteers at any
one time.

“(j) ALTERNATIVE SYSTEMS.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall establish an al-
ternative reporting system and hotline access system through which volunteers who
are victims of assault can report and receive support on an anonymous basis. Such
alternative systems shall be published in the Volunteer Handbook.

“VICTIMS ADVOCATES

“SEc. 8D. (a) VICTIMS ADVOCATES.—

“(1) IN GENERAL.—The Director of the Peace Corps shall assign a certified vic-
tims advocate in Peace Corps headquarters who shall report directly to the Di-
rector. The Director of the Peace Corps shall assign such additional certified vic-
tims advocates to assist such victims advocate as the Director determines nec-
essary. Such additional victims advocates shall have regional expertise and may
be posted abroad if such victims advocate determines that such is necessary.

“(2) SENSE OF CONGRESS.—It is the sense of Congress that the Director of the
Peace Corps should assign three additional certified victims advocates to assist
the certified victims advocate under paragraph (1).

“(3) PrROHIBITION.—Peace Corps Medical Officers, Safety and Security Offi-
cers, and program staff may not serve as victims advocates. The victims advo-
cate and additional victims advocates may not have any other duties in the
Peace Corps.

“(4) EXEMPTION.—The victims advocate and additional victims advocates shall
be exempt from the five year rule on appointments and assignments under sec-
tion 7.

“(b) RESPONSIBILITIES.—The victims advocate and additional victims advocates
shall help develop and imple